1993

# JJBAKD, a Utah General Partnership v. Howard F. Hatch : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

### **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

A. Nature of the Case. The plaintiff sought to evict the mobile home belonging to the defendant for alleged violations of the lease agreement under §57-16-5(1) of the Utah Code (R. 25).

B. Summary of Proceedings and Disposition in Trial Court.

The defendant answered and brought a counterclaim against the plaintiff for its violation of §57-16-4 of the Utah Statute and its own rules, saying that the demands made upon him were unreasonable, unduly burdensome and without a legal basis and that the mobile home park manager had been arbitrary and capricious in his application of the rules. Special damages of \$1600 were sought, as well as \$15,000 in exemplary damages (R. 30), and a jury trial requested (R. 39).

Rather than pursuing its claims under the mobile home statute (§57-16-6) as filed, the plaintiff posted a bond and sought to require a counterbond of the defendant as per the unlawful detainer statute, §78-36-8.5 of the Utah Code, which the court granted (R. 44).

After requiring the defendant to post \$3,500 in the form of a cash, the court required interim rents as well but without adequately communicating this to the defendant. When it became clear to the defendant that these were required in addition the bond amount, the defendant offered to pay them into court but the tender was refused (R. 145,146) and summary judgment given based on his failure to pay the rental amounts, which had previously been returned (R. 60-61).

The plaintiff's motion for summary judgment was based on its allegation that the defendant had failed to comply with the requirements of §57-16-8 of the Utah Code (Mobile Home Park Residency Statute) and judgment was entered by Judge McGuire within one day of the filing of a motion for summary judgment by the plaintiff (R. 83). Even though the defendant made a motion to set this aside (R. 94), Judge McGuire refused.

Because of a protest lodged, the court set a hearing to consider the motion for summary judgment which it had already granted (see

Addendum G). Without notice that the matter would be considered and without any opportunity provided to the defendant at the hearing to present evidence of the validity of his counterclaim, the court not only granted summary judgment on the plaintiff's claims but also dismissed out of hand the defendant's counterclaims (R. 111).

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The defendant believes the court showed extreme prejudice and did not respect his legal rights, that even though the initial judge did disqualify himself, he attempted to influence the course of the proceedings by his gratuitous minute entry and influence within the local court system.

That Judge McGuire appeared just as prejudiced in his efforts to find judgment against the defendant by his premature granting of summary judgment and did deny him equity before the bar as evidenced by the many other statutes violated in the process.

#### ARGUMENT

Evidence of Judge Sumpsion's prejudice was manifest at the first hearing when he interrupted the plaintiff's opening comments that the case was a "simple" one by saying: "Anything Mr. Hatch is involved in is not simple and before you are through you will find that out." (R. 63, 64) I believe his gratuitous minute entry, a copy of which is attached as Addendum H, was completely uncalled for and was meant solely for the purpose of prejudicing further proceedings. Both of these actions constitute, I believe, a violation of Canon 3, §(A) (1), (4) and (6), of the Code of Judicial Conduct.

Administrative practice was further violated when the case was passed on immediately to Judge McGuire by Judge Sumsion without waiting to have it assigned out by the administrator's office.



When judgment was entered by Judge McGuire within one day of the filing of a motion for summary judgment by the plaintiff, in violation of Rule 4-501(2) of the Code of Judicial Administration, which allows an opposing party up to 10 days to respond, it seemed that he was just as prejudiced and eager to punish the defendant as Judge Sumsion, especially where he refused to set this aside after being requested to do so.

Under the Utah Code governing mobile home parks,

§57-16-6(5), provides that "eviction proceedings commenced under this chapter and based on causes set forth in Subsections 57-16-5(1), (2), and (5) shall be brought in accordance with the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure and shall not be treated as unlawful detainer actions under Chapter 36, Title 78."

Even though the requiring of a counterbond of the Defendant was contrary to the Code Section just cited, the court further violated the Defendant's rights by requiring that the bond be in cash only (§78-36-8.5(2)(b) allows other options).

After the very substantial amount set by the court was posted (\$3,500), the court further required interim rents to be kept current. This is discretionary. When it became clear to me that the court was requiring it, I offered the sum due but it was refused and summary judgment given based on my failure to pay these amounts.

At a hearing to consider a motion for summary judgment made by the plaintiff, and without any opportunity being given to me to present evidence of the validity of my counterclaim, the court not only granted summary judgment on the plaintiff's claims but also dismissed out of hand my contentions in the counterclaim. It is clearly the rule, which is supported by prior decisions of the appellate courts in this state, that all claims of plaintiff or counterclaimant shall be given a fair opportunity to be heard.

Because disposition of a case by summary judgment denies the benefit of a trial on the merits, any doubt concerning questions of fact, including evidence and reasonable inferences drawn from the evidence, should be resolved in favor of the party opposing the motion. Beehive Brick Co. v. Robinson Brick Co., 780 P.2d 827 (Utah Ct. App. 1989)

#### CONCLUSION

The defendant would respectfully request this court to reverse the judgment of the lower court and remand the matter back for a full and fair hearing before a jury as to the facts bearing on the case, and directing the court administrator to refer the matter to an impartial judge.