1993

# JJBAKD, a Utah General Partnership v. Howard F. Hatch : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

This issue at hand involves no constitutional provisions in dispute.

IN THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS

---

JJBAKD, a Utah General Partnership,	)	APPELLEE'S BRIEF
	)	
Plaintiff and Appellee,	)	Case No. 930043-CA
	)	
vs.	)	
	)	
HOWARD F. HATCH,	)	Trial Court No. 920-2330 CV
	)	
Defendant and Appellant.	)	

---

JURISDICTION

The Utah Court of Appeals has jurisdiction of this case pursuant to Utah Code Annotated Section 78-2A-3(2)(d) of Utah Judicial Code.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Nature of the Case. On or about July 22, 1992, Appellee filed a complaint with the Trial Court for the purpose of evicting the Appellant and his mobile home. (R. 26) Appellant's mobile home was occupying one of the lots in Appellee's mobile home park known as Crestline Estates Mobile Home Park located in Provo, Utah County, Utah. The grounds for the lawsuit included the fact that Appellant had been served a fifteen-day rule violation notice on or about May 29, 1992. Appellant thereafter was served a three-day lease termination notice for repeated failure to comply with mobile home park rules on or about July 2, 1992. The basis for the fifteen-day rule violation notice was that Appellant had failed to provide for the care of the lawns and landscaping around the subject leased premises thus creating a health and fire hazard, was

maintaining unapproved storage sheds and enclosures on the premises and was storing miscellaneous items around the premises not in proper storage, failed to provide proper skirting and coverage over the mobile home hitch/tongue and mobile home; and was maintaining an unlicensed vehicle in the park, all of which were violations of specific rules by which the Appellant was obligated to abide. The three-day lease termination notice for repeated failure to comply was served on Appellant for the identical violations set forth in the fifteen-day notice. Appellant also owed rent for July, 1992 in the amount of \$170.00 which was the fair market value of the leased premises. Appellee, therefore, sought judgment against the Appellant for termination of the lease and immediate restitution and possession of the leased premises, unpaid rent for July, 1992 and rent at the rate of \$5.48 per day until judgment was entered and restitution was granted and for costs and attorney's fees as provided for in the lease agreement.

On or about August 24, 1992, Appellant filed an answer and counterclaim. (R. 31) Appellant raised as a defense that he signed the lease agreement with the Appellee under duress. Appellant raised as an affirmative defense that he was never subject to the provisions of the lease agreement or the rules. Appellant in his counterclaim alleged that the rules and regulations of the park were unreasonable and unduly burdensome and without proper legal basis. He further alleged in the counterclaim that these rules were null and void as to him and his mobile home located in the park. Accordingly, Appellant alleged that he was

entitled to special damages and punitive damages for being required to live by the park rules.

B. Course of Proceedings. On August 31, 1992, after Appellant's answer was filed, Appellee filed a certificate of readiness for trial and request for trial setting.(R. 37) On September 1, 1992, the Court ordered that the matter be set for pre-trial conference. (R. 38) On September 11, 1992, Appellee filed a motion for the Court for a landlord's possession bond. (R. 44) The grounds for the motion was that Appellant had not paid rent for July, August, and September, 1992, and was currently in default of said rental payments. On September 14, 1992, the Court ordered that Appellee file a possession bond in the form of a cash bond in the amount of \$5,000.00 (R. 45), and a notice of the possession bond was served on Appellant. (R. 102) Appellant demanded a hearing as provided for in the Forcible Entry and Detainer Act, Utah Code Annotated Section 78-36-8.5(2) (R. 54), and the hearing was held on September 22, 1992 at the hour of 11:00 a.m. (R. 57) (For full citation of the Forcible Entry and Detainer Act, see Addendum "G".) Appellee was represented by its counsel, James R. Boud, and Appellant appeared personally at the hearing. Arguments were heard by Appellee and Appellant and the Court ordered specifically that Appellant could retain possession of the premises upon posting a counter-bond in the form of cash or a cashier's check in the amount of \$3,500.00. The Court indicated the necessity of the bond due to the reason that a counterclaim had been filed, and a jury trial had been demanded by Appellant, both



of which could be lengthy and affected Appellant's right to an expedient trial and could result in substantial fees and costs to Appellant. At said hearing Appellant acknowledged not having paid rent for July, August, and September and was therefore ordered by the Court to pay those rents into the Court as required by Utah Code Annotated Section 57-16-8. (See Order; Addendum "A".) The bond and the rents were to be paid by Appellant into Court by Friday, September 25, 1992, at 5:00 p.m. The Court ruled that if Appellant did not pay the rent into the Court, then Appellee could proceed with a motion for summary judgment pursuant to Utah Code Annotated Section 57-16-8. Similarly, if the bond was not posted timely, Appellee would be entitled to a writ of restitution immediately thereafter. (See Order; Addendum "A".)

On or about October 1, 1992, Appellant filed a motion to disqualify Judge Sumsion, the assigned judge to the case who had ruled on the September 22, 1992 hearing. The basis for Appellant's motion was that Judge Sumsion had been an attorney in the firm of Sumsion & Park with whom ". . . this defendant has had a long and bitter legal battle . . . " and also on the grounds that Judge Sumsion had made a statement at the September 22, 1992 hearing that the case would not be a simple one. Accordingly, Judge Sumsion entered a minute entry on October 6, 1992, recusing himself from the case. (See Addendum "B".) On October 9, 1992, Judge Sumsion entered a ruling on the motion stating he was recusing himself because he would soon be retiring and the case may not reach final

disposition before his retirement date in two months. (See Addendum "C".)

Appellant posted the bond timely as ordered by the Court (R. 58) but failed to pay rent as ordered by the Court. Accordingly, on October 15, 1992, Appellee filed a motion for summary judgment. (R. 73) The basis for this motion was in two parts. First, Appellant had acknowledged owing rents for July, August, and September, 1992, and that said rents had not been paid. The Court had ordered in the prior hearing of September 22, 1992, that the rents must be paid and that Appellee could proceed with a motion for summary judgment if they were not paid into Court. Second, pursuant to Utah Code Annotated Section 57-16-8, if a resident of a mobile home park elects to contest an eviction proceeding, all rents, fees, and service charges due and incurred during the pending action shall be paid into the Court. Failure to do so constitutes grounds for granting summary judgment in favor of the mobile home park. The Court entered the order granting summary judgment on October 19, 1992. (See Order; Addendum "D".)

On October 20, 1992, Appellant filed his memorandum in opposition to motion for summary judgment claiming that payment of rent was discretionary despite what the Court's earlier order had been. (R. 90) Appellant requested an oral argument. On or about November 3, 1992, Appellant filed his motion and memorandum to set aside order. (R. 94) The Court, therefore, scheduled a hearing which was held on November 18, 1992, allowing oral argument on Appellee's motion for summary judgment and on Appellant's motion to

set aside the order. (R. 103 and 104) At the hearing the Court heard arguments by both parties and ruled that summary judgment was proper for the Appellee under Utah Code Annotated Section 57-16-8 and pursuant to Appellant's failure to abide by the September 22, 1992 order. (R. 116) The Court found that summary judgment being entered, Appellant's counterclaim was moot and therefore dismissed the same. Appellant then filed this appeal.

C. Disposition at Trial Court. Summary judgment was granted in favor of the Appellee on November 18, 1992. With the filing of the summary judgment the Court found the Appellant's counterclaim moot and dismissed the same.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

There were no improprieties or prejudices by the Trial Court judges in this case as argued by Appellant. The initial judge, Judge Sumsion, recused himself upon motion by the Appellant because he was soon to be retiring and believed the case would not be disposed of in its finality before his retirement date. (See minute entry and see ruling at Addendums "B" and "C", respectively.) This is certainly not grounds evidencing any prejudice by the Judge. In any event, the Judge granted Appellant's motion to recuse leaving nothing Appellant can point to in the record that would cause the new judge to have any presumed bias against the Appellant. Furthermore, there is nothing on the record that Appellant can identify that would show that Judge McGuire was prejudiced or violated any statutes or otherwise acted

with impropriety towards the Appellant. (See minute entry by Judge McGuire at Addendum "E".)

Summary judgment was proper in this matter based upon applicable Utah statutes giving the Court authority to grant summary judgment in favor of the landlord where the tenant, in an eviction action, elects to contest the action and fails to pay rent. Based on this statute alone, the Court had every right to grant Appellee's summary judgment when the Appellant on his own admission failed to pay rent into the Court for five months following the initiation of the lawsuit.

#### ARGUMENT

Appellee sees no reason to respond to Appellant's argument regarding Judge Sumsion's prejudice. Although Appellee disagrees there was any prejudice by Judge Sumsion, the Judge did, in fact, recuse himself without making any rulings relative to this appeal. Accordingly, the alleged issue concerning Judge Sumsion's supposed prejudice against Appellant was resolved upon recusing himself. Also, there is nothing on the record showing any prejudice by Judge McGuire. In fact, he made it very clear that he did not know Mr. Hatch and had not talked about the case with any of the other judges. (See Addendum "E".)

Appellee, in review of the record, can find nothing that would show that Judge McGuire violated any rules and regulations of the Court by entering a summary judgment as argued by Appellant. Although it appears from the record that the Court may have

inadvertently entered a ruling for judgment in favor of Appellee prior to the expiration of ten days time for a response, as required by Rule 4-501(2), Utah Code of Judicial Administration, the Court corrected that error by allowing Appellant oral argument and an opportunity to file a responsive pleading. Appellant did file a written response setting forth his arguments and was granted a hearing. Oral argument was made before the Court on November 18, 1992, and Appellant had full opportunity to argue his objections. Following argument, the Court ruled that summary judgment was proper, not only because Appellant failed to pay rent as ordered earlier, but also pursuant to Utah Code Annotated Section 57-16-8, which reads as follows:

If a resident elects to contest an eviction proceeding, all rents, fees, and service charges due and incurred during the pendency of the action shall be paid into the court according to the current mobile home park payment schedule. Failure of the resident to pay such amounts, in the discretion of the court, may constitute grounds for granting summary judgment in favor of the mobile home park. Upon final termination of the issues between the parties, the court shall order all amounts paid into court paid to the mobile home park. The prevailing party is also entitled to court costs and reasonable attorney's fees.

The Court ordered that pursuant to the above section, Appellee was entitled to summary judgment, which included restitution of the mobile home park premises, rent due and owing, and reasonable attorney's fees. Appellant clearly was in violation of the statute and the Court had every right to exercise its discretion to grant summary judgment in favor of the Appellee. The Judge very clearly stated in a minute entry of November 9, 1992, that he had not discussed the case with the previous judge who had recused himself,

Judge Sumsion, that he had no idea who the Appellant was nor the Appellee or its attorneys or agents, and that he had no personal interest in this matter except to exercise justice. (See Addendum "E".) There is simply nothing in the record that would indicate that Judge McGuire was prejudiced and did anything other than follow the applicable statutory provisions. Because the issues raised in Appellant's counterclaim were moot in light of the ruling for summary judgment, the Court dismissed the counterclaim which was within the Court's discretion.